
Page 63 of 124



Page 64 of 124



Page 65 of 124



Page 66 of 124



   
MARIJUANA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  APRIL 27, 2016 

City of Dillingham  April 27, 2016 
Marijuana Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 1 of 4 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

The Marijuana Advisory Committee met on Wednesday, April 27, 2016, in the Council 
Chambers, Dillingham, AK. Chair Misty Savo called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Committee Members present: 
Misty Savo  Tracy Hightower Nick Rossi   Tim McCambly  
Jason Munster  Kenda Horan Gorden Isaacs  
 
Staff in attendance: Rose Loera 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a.  Minutes of April 6, 2016 
 

MOTION: Tracy Hightower moved and Kenda Horan seconded the motion to 
approve the minutes of April 6, 2016. 

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.    
  
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
MOTION: Tracy Hightower moved and Tim McCambly seconded the motion to 

approve the agenda. 
 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.    

 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Issues the City and State May Both Regulate  

  
1) Whether Retail Marijuana Stores May Sell Other Products 
   

Follow-up: 
 Confirm if alcohol can be sold on the same premises as marijuana, understood 

State statute prohibited both to be sold in the same facility; 
 Does marijuana need to be in a secure room separated from other products in a 

retail store. 
 

MOTION: Gorden Isaacs moved and Jason Munster seconded the motion to 
recommend making no further restrictions on retail sales in marijuana 
facilities other than what the State has already established.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

Page 67 of 124



   
MARIJUANA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  APRIL 27, 2016 

City of Dillingham  April 27, 2016 
Marijuana Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 2 of 4 

 
Discussion ensued if the 500 foot buffer zone was the nearest pedestrian route or as 
the crow flies.  Noted it would be the responsibility of the owner of the business to 
determine that pedestrian route and prove that it is the distance the State requires.   

 
2) Personal Use Issues 
 

i. Nuisance Issues 
 

Police Chief Pasquariello: 
 Referenced DMC 8.30.030 unlawful to permit marijuana use in a public place;  
 Translates marijuana use in public same as drinking in public, can’t walk around 

drinking a beer, can’t walk around smoking marijuana; 
 Smoking on a boat, identified as water crafts, in a harbor could technically be in 

violation of State law;  
 

MOTION: Gorden Isaacs moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to define 
a boat as private property when immobile for the purposes of allowing the 
use of marijuana.  

 
MOTION: Gorden Isaacs moved to rescind his motion.  (City Clerk Note: A second 

on the motion is required and a vote taken.)    
 
MOTION: Gorden Isaacs moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion for the 

purposes of marijuana regulations that a boat in dry dock shall be 
considered private property rather than a water craft.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
Police Chief Pasquariello: 

 Noted the smell of marijuana smoke coming from an apartment probably wasn’t 
much that could be done, but could require marijuana growers to use methods 
other than open air venting to mitigate against foul odors in the air.    

 
ii. Automobiles/Boats/Planes  

- Passenger vs. Driver 
- Open Container Issue 

 
Manager Loera referred the committee to the Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 8.30, 
Marijuana Regulations, and the memo in the packet from the City’s Attorney.  
 

3) Taxation and Licensing Issues   
 

Noted the licensing issue had been covered previously, and the taxation questions were 
addressed in the packet.  Sales of marijuana would be subject to the City’s 6% sales 
tax.  No vote was required.  If wishing a higher tax, it would need to go to the voters.   
 

Page 68 of 124



   
MARIJUANA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  APRIL 27, 2016 

City of Dillingham  April 27, 2016 
Marijuana Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 3 of 4 

 
Discussion ensued regarding testing facility requirements that the State is not providing 
any helpful guidance.  
 
MOTION: Gorden Isaac moved and Nick Rossi seconded the motion to recommend 

to the Council to draft a letter asking the State to review the testing 
procedures and to modify them so they can work in bush Alaska.  
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously be voice vote.  
   

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Schedule Next Meeting  
 

Misty Savo felt the committee had done their due diligence to thoroughly vet the issues 
outlined in their meeting agendas. She encouraged the committee members to attend 
the Code Review Committee meeting scheduled for May 5, and the next City Council 
meeting, May 12.   

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

 
 Ray Kase Jr. asked how the group would know if a letter had been sent to the State to 

change the regulations.  She commented it would be best to attend the Council 
meetings to stay on top of the issues.  

 
 Dwayne Johnson thanked the group for their efforts vetting the issues. He felt the laws 

that had been in place for medical marijuana regulations had never been clear.  
 

Gorden Isaacs noted at the beginning he expected the committee to come up with a 
whole bunch of new regulations, but found the State had pretty much addressed them.  
Felt the committee had done a great job vetting the issues and providing discussion.  
Noted the vote to approve marijuana facilities had been pretty close, but judging from 
the attendance at meetings the no’s must not be that against it.   

 
 Tim McCambly thanked everyone for their input, noting it had been a worthwhile 

experience.  
 
 Tracy Hightower thanked the committee and the public for showing up and providing 

their input.  
 
 Kenda Horan thanked Rose and Misty for all their help.   
 
 Jason Munson hoped all their work would lead to a positive outcome.  
 
 Nick Rossi reported it had been interesting reviewing the regulations and working with 

the other committee members.   
 

Page 69 of 124



   
MARIJUANA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  APRIL 27, 2016 

City of Dillingham  April 27, 2016 
Marijuana Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 4 of 4 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:21 p.m.  
 

       __________________________ 
       Misty Savo, Chair 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________      
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
Approval Date: ___________________________  

Page 70 of 124



   
MARIJUANA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  APRIL 27, 2016 

City of Dillingham  April 27, 2016 
Marijuana Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 1 of 4 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

The Marijuana Advisory Committee met on Wednesday, April 27, 2016, in the Council 
Chambers, Dillingham, AK. Chair Misty Savo called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.   

 
2. ROLL CALL 

 
Committee Members present: 
Misty Savo  Tracy Hightower Nick Rossi   Tim McCambly  
Jason Munster  Kenda Horan Gorden Isaacs  
 
Staff in attendance: Rose Loera 
 
3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
a.  Minutes of April 6, 2016 
 

MOTION: Tracy Hightower moved and Kenda Horan seconded the motion to 
approve the minutes of April 6, 2016. 

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.    
  
4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
MOTION: Tracy Hightower moved and Tim McCambly seconded the motion to 

approve the agenda. 
 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.    

 
5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
a. Issues the City and State May Both Regulate  

  
1) Whether Retail Marijuana Stores May Sell Other Products 
   

Follow-up: 
 Confirm if alcohol can be sold on the same premises as marijuana, understood 

State statute prohibited both to be sold in the same facility; 
 Does marijuana need to be in a secure room separated from other products in a 

retail store. 
 

MOTION: Gorden Isaacs moved and Jason Munster seconded the motion to 
recommend making no further restrictions on retail sales in marijuana 
facilities other than what the State has already established.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  

Page 71 of 124



   
MARIJUANA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  APRIL 27, 2016 

City of Dillingham  April 27, 2016 
Marijuana Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 2 of 4 

 
Discussion ensued if the 500 foot buffer zone was the nearest pedestrian route or as 
the crow flies.  Noted it would be the responsibility of the owner of the business to 
determine that pedestrian route and prove that it is the distance the State requires.   

 
2) Personal Use Issues 
 

i. Nuisance Issues 
 

Police Chief Pasquariello: 
 Referenced DMC 8.30.030 unlawful to permit marijuana use in a public place;  
 Translates marijuana use in public same as drinking in public, can’t walk around 

drinking a beer, can’t walk around smoking marijuana; 
 Smoking on a boat, identified as water crafts, in a harbor could technically be in 

violation of State law;  
 

MOTION: Gorden Isaacs moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion to define 
a boat as private property when immobile for the purposes of allowing the 
use of marijuana.  

 
MOTION: Gorden Isaacs moved to rescind his motion.  (City Clerk Note: A second 

on the motion is required and a vote taken.)    
 
MOTION: Gorden Isaacs moved and Tracy Hightower seconded the motion for the 

purposes of marijuana regulations that a boat in dry dock shall be 
considered private property rather than a water craft.  

 
VOTE: The motion passed unanimously by voice vote.  
 
Police Chief Pasquariello: 

 Noted the smell of marijuana smoke coming from an apartment probably wasn’t 
much that could be done, but could require marijuana growers to use methods 
other than open air venting to mitigate against foul odors in the air.    

 
ii. Automobiles/Boats/Planes  

- Passenger vs. Driver 
- Open Container Issue 

 
Manager Loera referred the committee to the Dillingham Municipal Code Chapter 8.30, 
Marijuana Regulations, and the memo in the packet from the City’s Attorney.  
 

3) Taxation and Licensing Issues   
 

Noted the licensing issue had been covered previously, and the taxation questions were 
addressed in the packet.  Sales of marijuana would be subject to the City’s 6% sales 
tax.  No vote was required.  If wishing a higher tax, it would need to go to the voters.   
 

Page 72 of 124



   
MARIJUANA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  APRIL 27, 2016 

City of Dillingham  April 27, 2016 
Marijuana Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 3 of 4 

 
Discussion ensued regarding testing facility requirements that the State is not providing 
any helpful guidance.  
 
MOTION: Gorden Isaac moved and Nick Rossi seconded the motion to recommend 

to the Council to draft a letter asking the State to review the testing 
procedures and to modify them so they can work in bush Alaska.  
 

VOTE: The motion passed unanimously be voice vote.  
   

6. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Schedule Next Meeting  
 

Misty Savo felt the committee had done their due diligence to thoroughly vet the issues 
outlined in their meeting agendas. She encouraged the committee members to attend 
the Code Review Committee meeting scheduled for May 5, and the next City Council 
meeting, May 12.   

 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT/COMMITTEE COMMENTS 

 
 Ray Kase Jr. asked how the group would know if a letter had been sent to the State to 

change the regulations.  She commented it would be best to attend the Council 
meetings to stay on top of the issues.  

 
 Dwayne Johnson thanked the group of their efforts vetting the issues, He felt the laws 

that had been in place for medical marijuana regulations had never been clear.  
 

Gorden Isaacs noted at the beginning he expected the committee to come up with a 
whole bunch of new regulations, but found the State had pretty much addressed them.  
Felt the committee had done a great job vetting the issues and providing discussion.  
Noted the vote to approve marijuana facilities had been pretty close, but judging from 
the attendance at meetings the no’s must not be that against it.   

 
 Tim McCambly thanked everyone for their input, noting it had been a worthwhile 

experience.  
 
 Tracy Hightower thanked the committee and the public for showing up and providing 

their input.  
 
 Kenda Horan thanked Rose and Misty for all their help.   
 
 Jason Munson hoped all their work would lead to a positive outcome.  
 
 Nick Rossi reported it had been interesting reviewing the regulations and working with 

the other committee members.   
 

Page 73 of 124



   
MARIJUANA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING MEETING MINUTES 
  APRIL 27, 2016 

City of Dillingham  April 27, 2016 
Marijuana Advisory Committee Meeting  Page 4 of 4 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:21 p.m.  
 

       __________________________ 
       Misty Savo, Chair 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________      
Janice Williams, City Clerk  
Approval Date: ___________________________  

Page 74 of 124



Page 75 of 124



 

Page 76 of 124



Page 77 of 124



Page 78 of 124



Page 79 of 124



Page 80 of 124



Page 81 of 124



 

Page 82 of 124



Page 83 of 124



Page 84 of 124



Page 85 of 124



 

Page 86 of 124



Page 87 of 124



Page 88 of 124



Page 89 of 124



Page 90 of 124



Page 91 of 124



Page 92 of 124



Page 93 of 124




